
 
CITY OF ELKHORN 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
August 5, 2019, 5:30 p.m. 

Council Chambers, City Hall, 9 S. Broad St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Roll Call 
4) Public Comment Although the public may speak on any item that is not included on this agenda as a 

“Public Hearing or Forum”, the Council may not respond or discuss the issue brought forward at this time. In 
accordance with open meeting laws the Council must notice an item on the agenda to allow discussion on 
that matter. Your comments will be considered and may be placed on a future agenda for further discussion. 

5) Minutes  
a) Council Meeting Minutes: July 15, 2019, Committee Meeting Minutes: Committee of the Whole 

on July 22, 2019 and July 29, 2019 
6) Report of City Officers  

a) Mayor 
i) World Breastfeeding Week Proclamation 

b) City Administrator 
i) Sand Creek Consultants: Proposal recommendation to approve proposal to review DNR 

record file for former Union Gas remediation site (Sunset Park) 
7) Committee Reports 

a) Committee of the Whole 
i) Recommendation to approve Applied Technologies for I&I Mitigation 

b) Legislative & Regulatory 
i) Recommendation regarding “Class A” Liquor/Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License 

for America’s Liquor, LLC, 9 N. Lincoln St. 
8) Plan Commission 

a) Request for extension of Conditional Use Permit from New Life of Elkhorn, LP 
b) Recommendation to Rezone 429 and 431 E. Geneva St. from M-1 to RS-1 (YVSE00009A) 

9) New Business 
a) Change Order No. 4 for new Public Works Facility 
b) Matheson Memorial Library Fencing 

10) Adjourn into Closed Session 
a) Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 19.85(1)(c) “considering employment, promotion, compensation 

or performance evaluation of data of any public employee over which the governmental body 
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.” 
i) Review proposed contract for new City Administrator 

11) Reconvene in Open Session for possible action on Closed Session items 
12)  Adjourn  
DATED at Elkhorn, Wisconsin, this 2nd day of August 2019  

Cairie L. Virrueta, City Clerk  
 
Should you have any questions or comments regarding any items on this agenda, please contact the City Clerk’s office at 
723-2219. Upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals 
through appropriate aids and services. 



 
CITY OF ELKHORN COMMON COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES 
July 15, 2019 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 9 S. BROAD ST., ELKHORN, WI 53121 
 
The Common Council meeting was called to order by Mayor Reynolds at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Tim Shiroda, Frank Boggs, Karel Young, Tom Myrin, Ron 
Dunwiddie, Scott McClory 
Others present: City Administrator Sam Tapson, Finance Director James Heilman, City Attorney Ward 
Phillips, City Clerk Cairie Virrueta, Police Chief Joel Christensen, Utility Director John Murphy, DPW 
Manager Matthew Lindstrom, Fire Chief Rod Smith, Library Director Lisa Selje, Recreation Director Karl 
Sorvick, other interested persons 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion (Shiroda/Young) to approve the minutes of the July 1, 2019 Common Council meeting.  Voice 
vote, all approved, motion carried. 
 
BILLS PAYABLE 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Young) to approve the City and Utility Bills in the amount of $2,257,713.33 (Check 
numbers 159825-160004). Roll call vote: Boggs, yes; Shiroda, yes; Young, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, 
yes; Myrin, yes. Motion carried. 
 
REPORT OF CITY OFFICERS 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
None. 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
I&I Study: RFP Responses/Next Steps   
Administrator Tapson said the City received four proposals and staff is completing reviews today.  He 
asked the Council how it wanted to proceed.  The Council discussed dates for presentations from the firms.  
It was decided to have the presentations on July 29th.  
 
LIAISON COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 
Fire Advisory Board – no report 
Library Board – the library positions were reviewed, altered and approved by the Board 
Chamber – no report 
Recreation Advisory Board – no report 
Fire/EMS Advisory Steering – no report 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution 19-10: A Resolution to Amend the Wage and Salary Schedule Covering all General Employees   
Administrator Tapson said the resolution mistakenly did not include the Rec Coordinator and there were a 
couple of errors on wages for library employees.  Tech Services and Circulation Supervisor should start at 
$39,600.  Motion (Myrin/Shiroda) to approve Resolution No. 19-10 with corrections.  Roll call vote: 
Boggs, yes; Shiroda, yes; Young, yes; Dunwiddie, yes; McClory, yes; Myrin, yes. Motion carried. 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION  



City of Elkhorn Common Council Meeting, Page 2 
 

Motion (Shiroda/Dunwiddie) to adjourn to closed session Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 19.85(1)(e) 
“Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 
session.” Adjourned to closed session at 5:41 p.m.  
 
 
Cairie L. Virrueta 
City Clerk 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Committee of the Whole Minutes 

Common Council Chambers, 9 S. Broad Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

July 22, 2019 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order by Mayor Reynolds at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Tim Shiroda, Frank Boggs, Ron Dunwiddie, Karel Young, Scott 
McClory, Tom Myrin  
Others present: Administrator Sam Tapson, Finance Director James Heilman, City Clerk Cairie Virrueta, 
Officer Peterson, DPW Manager Matthew Lindstrom, Deputy Clerk Lacey Reynolds, Chris Clapper, Kellen 
Olshefski, Dan Kehoe, Bill Henry 
 
City Hall Preliminary Site Considerations Discussion with Kehoe-Henry & Associates 
Kehoe-Henry presented six potential sites for a new City Hall.  This included Sunset Park, the old DPW site, 
the vacant parcel next to the Chamber, two properties in the business park, the site next to Advia and the 
VFW building.  The Council eliminated the old DPW site and VFW location from consideration.   The Council 
also discussed the former DHS building, which is excessively large for the City’s needs, and the government 
center – which does not have space or immediate plans by the County to vacate.  After discussion, the 
Council felt that the ability to expand a future City Hall for potential PD or Fire/EMS inclusion was an 
important consideration.  The site next to the Chamber was determined to be too small and visibility would 
be an issue.  The architects said visibility could be improved by tearing down the Chamber building. The 
Sunset Park site is a closed site, but the ability to build on it needs to be looked into further.  Motion 
(Shiroda /Dunwiddie) to consider three sites for a future City Hall:  Sunset Park between the Rec building 
and Walworth St., the larger site in the industrial park and the property next to Advia Credit Union on 
Wisconsin St.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  Alderman McClory asked the architects when the 
Council will have the analysis of the sites; the end of August.  Administrator Tapson said as the Sunset Park 
site is to be considered, more information on building on it is needed.  He contacted Fehr Graham recently 
to review it.  Motion (Myrin/McClory) for the City Administrator to contact Fehr Graham for site 
evaluation of the Sunset Park site.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.   
 
Adjourn 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Boggs) to adjourn.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  Adjourned at 5:50 p.m.    
 
 
Cairie L. Virrueta 
City Clerk 



CITY OF ELKHORN 
Committee of the Whole Minutes 

Common Council Chambers, 9 S. Broad Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 
 

July 29, 2019 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order by Mayor Reynolds at 4:30 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 
Present:   Mayor Howie Reynolds, Aldermen Frank Boggs, Ron Dunwiddie, Karel Young; Absent: Tim 
Shiroda, Scott McClory, Tom Myrin 
Others present: Administrator Tapson Finance Director James Heilman, City Clerk Cairie Virrueta, DPW 
Manager Matthew Lindstrom 
 
Interview firms for I&I Mitigation 
Applied Technologies did a presentation of their proposal for I&I mitigation.  They plan to update the older 
studies and have a team of four working on the project.  It would be completed in approximately nine 
weeks.  They said over 50% of storm water is clear water.  Clark Dietz would have a team of one or two 
people and would use the existing data, which he has extensive knowledge of, to make a recommendation.   
Following presentations and questions, the committee discussed the two firms.  DPW Manager Lindstrom 
said staff ratings were very close with one point between ATI and Clark Dietz.  He said this is ATI’s area of 
expertise and Clark Dietz has experience with Elkhorn.  Alderman Dunwiddie said he liked that ATI planned 
to get additional raw data as the current data is over 10 years old.  DPW Manager Lindstrom said he spoke 
to another municipality who is using ATI and they are having a good experience with them.  Motion 
(Dunwiddie/Boggs) to recommend Applied Technologies for I&I mitigation.  Voice vote, all approved, 
motion carried. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion (Dunwiddie/Boggs) to adjourn.  Voice vote, all approved, motion carried.  Adjourned at 6:04 p.m.    
 
 
Cairie L. Virrueta 
City Clerk 



Proclamation 
Mayor Howie Reynolds 

City of Elkhorn 
 

WHEREAS, breastfeeding requires evidence-based unbiased information and a 
warm chain of community support to create an environment that empowers 
mothers to breastfeed; although breastfeeding is the mother’s domain, it takes 
support from fathers, partners, families, workplaces and communities; and 

WHEREAS, breastfeeding is one of the best investments in saving lives and 
improving health for both mom and baby; and 

WHEREAS, although global breastfeeding rates are high, in Wisconsin only 29% of 
infants are exclusively breastfeeding at 6 months and over 15% receive formula 
by the 2nd day of life; and 

WHEREAS, while improvements are being made, action is still needed to meet the 
Healthy People 2020 breastfeeding goals which include more than 60% of moms 
breastfeeding until at least six months and at least 34% breastfeeding until at 
least one year; and 

WHEREAS, despite breastfeeding being the optimal way to feed an infant, 
breastfeeding is a team effort. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, HOWIE REYNOLDS, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF ELKHORN, do 
hereby proclaim August 5th  – August 12th, 2019 as 

“WORLD BREASTFEEDING WEEK” 

Dated this 5th day of August, 2019 

 

________________________________ 

Mayor Howie Reynolds 



 

  
Sand Creek Consultants, Inc. Page 1 of 3 

 
July 30, 2019 
 

Mr. Sam Tapson, City Administrator Sent via Email Only to:  stapson@cityofelkhorn.org & 
City of Elkhorn jheilman@cityofelkhorn.org 
9 South Broad Street 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 
 
 
Re: Potential New City Hall in Sunset Park of Former Gas Station Property 
 625 W. Walworth Avenue 
 Elkhorn, Wisconsin  
 
Subject: Proposal for Environmental Conditions Evaluation 
 
 
Dear Sam,  
 
Sand Creek Consultants, Inc. (Sand Creek) is pleased to present you with this proposal to help evaluate 

environmental issues at the potential building site for the new City Hall.  The Property is already owned 

by the City of Elkhorn and is located in Sunset Park.  The Property was formerly a private parcel which 

operated as a United Gas Station.  Approximately $675,000 was spent on environmental investigation 

and remediation activities on the Property from 1992 to 2003, with the site being closed by the 

Wisconsin Department of Commerce in 2001.   

Scope of Work 

Sand Creek will provide the following services on this project, as detailed in the tasks below:   

Task 1 – Project Management and Data Acquisition 

Information about the soil and groundwater chemistry will be obtained from historic records available from 

the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR).  There is some summary information available 

on-line from the WDNR web site, but further information will be pursued from the WDNR archives in Madison.  

It can take up to two weeks for information to be retrieved from storage.   

The historic testing information will provide details regarding the encountered soils and environmental 

impacts across the approximately 0.66-acre former gas station portion of the Sunset Park property (former 

625 W. Walworth Property – Lot 2 of CSM 1135).   

Discussions will also be held with the City’s architectural design firm to discuss the potential building layout 

and other construction-related details that may be impacted by remaining soil or groundwater contamination.   

This task also includes completion of correspondence with the City related to the project.   

mailto:stapson@cityofelkhorn.org


Mr. Sam Tapson/City of Elkhorn 
Proposal for Environmental Conditions Evaluation of Former Gas Station at 625 W. Walworth Avenue 
Elkhorn, Wisconsin July 2019 
 

  
Sand Creek Consultants, Inc. Page 2 of 3 

Task 2 – Data Evaluation and Interpretation 

The historic reports will be reviewed and interpreted with respect to remaining environmental issues that may 

present a concern for future construction.  Areas of known remaining soil and groundwater contamination at 

the time of case closure will be identified and compared to current WDNR regulatory standards. A figure 

identifying the location of historic structures, excavations, borings, wells, and other items of potential 

environmental interest will be prepared.   

The nature of the encountered soils, as noted on the borehole logs, if available, will be reviewed and 

interpreted.  The logs will be reviewed for notations that may indicate the presence of historic fill, which could 

require special handling upon excavation.   

Interpretations will be made regarding the potential for encountering other environmentally hazardous 

materials during redevelopment, and an assessment of the need for a sub-slab vapor mitigation system will be 

provided.     

Task 3 – Documentation Report 

Upon conclusion of the data acquisition and interpretation, Sand Creek will prepare a brief letter report that 

summarizes the findings.  Historic structures, as noted based on review of aerial photographs, will be 

summarized.   

The report will document the completed petroleum project investigation and soil excavation activities, and will 

summarize the remaining soil and groundwater chemistry results, depth to groundwater, and groundwater 

flow direction. Report conclusions will include identification of areas where landfill disposal of shallow, 

excavated soils may be necessary, and whether encountered groundwater may be impacted with remaining 

petroleum.  The need for sub-slab vapor mitigation systems beneath future structures will also be discussed.  

The nature of fill and native soils across the investigated area will be summarized, and copies of borehole logs, 

if available, will be provided as an attachment for review by the architect when excavation plans are being 

formulated.  

Other relevant reference materials that may prove helpful during construction will also be provided.    

Qualifications 

Sand Creek is an environmental consulting firm based in Amherst, Wisconsin, with additional offices in 

Rhinelander, Cedarburg, and Plymouth, Wisconsin. We have approximately 15 employees of highly 

experienced and skilled environmental professionals specializing in environmental investigation and 

remediation services, with particular expertise investigating and remediating agrichemical, dry cleaner, 

petroleum, and landfill sites. 

For this project, Mr. Kendrick Ebbott will serve as project manager.  Mr. Ebbott has managed 

construction-related projects with environmental issues on dozens of sites over 30 plus years as an 

environmental consultant in Wisconsin. He has prepared bid specifications for the City of Elkhorn and 

other municipalities in the past, and is well versed in requirements for vapor mitigation, as well as 

requirements for proper handling of excavated soil and/or removed groundwater. 



Mr. Sam Tapson/City of Elkhorn 
Proposal for Environmental Conditions Evaluation of Former Gas Station at 625 W. Walworth Avenue 
Elkhorn, Wisconsin July 2019 
 

  
Sand Creek Consultants, Inc. Page 3 of 3 

Cost Estimate 

Sand Creek will complete the scope of work identified above for $1,995 as a lump sum amount.   

If further efforts are needed that are beyond the scope of work identified in this proposal, we will 

discuss the need for the work and additional budget with you prior to implementation.  Future work 

may be completed on a time and materials basis, or a lump sum basis, after discussion with the City of 

Elkhorn regarding the necessary scope.   

For reference, field work will be completed by Mr. Ebbott at a rate of $95 per hour, and office tasks at a 

rate of $135 per hour. Other Sand Creek staff have different billing rates, according to task completed 

and experience level. 

Schedule 

We can initiate the work immediately upon signed authorization to proceed, and we anticipate the 

project can be completed in two to three weeks, depending on how quickly the WDNR can provide the 

records from storage. 

Agreement 

An agreement to hire Sand Creek can be prepared for your review and return.  Or if you prefer, a 

purchase order can be issued by the City to authorize this work so Sand Creek can get the project 

moving forward.  

 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me via phone at 920.918.9024 or by email at 

ken.ebbott@sand-creek.com.  Thank you for the opportunity to provide assistance on this project.   

SAND CREEK CONSULTANTS, INC. 
 
 
 
Kendrick Ebbott, PG 
Project Manager 
 
Via email only 

mailto:ken.ebbott@sand-creek.com


New Life of Elkhorn, LP 
504 W. Court Street 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

 
July 29, 2019 
 
Common City Council 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 
 
   RE: Request for Extension of Conditional Use Permit 
 
Dear Common City Council, 
 
 We would like to request an extension of Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) issued on 
September 10 2018. 
 
 Soon after receiving the CUP last September, New Life of Elkhorn had contacted a local 
partner Magill construction to commence the project.  Unfortunately, Magill construction had 
closed its operation at the time.  Matt Magill provided a construction proposals and cost 
estimation on September 26, 2018 through an out of town construction company, VJS.  See 
attached.  
 
 Due to the construction cost estimation proposed by VJS were above New Life’s budget, 
New Life contacted another local construction company, Scherrer, for an alternative proposal.  
At the meeting between Scherrer principals and Zoe Makhous, Scherrer principals stated that 
Scherrer would be able to meet New Life of Elkhorn’s budgets for the entire project of about 
$2,000,000 including $1,200,000 for four duplexes and would commence the construction 
quickly due to its close relation with City of Elkhorn.   
 
 Based on such representation by Scherrer’s principals, New Life of Elkhorn entered a 
construction contract with Scherrer late 2018 and a copy of such contract was filed with City of 
Elkhorn. 
 
 However, up to the end of June 2019, Scherrer has not done any construction.  After 
repeated request for a construction budget, Scherrer didn’t submit a sketch of construction 
scope and estimation until June 10, 2019.  See attached.  
 

Scherrer’s cost estimation for duplexes are higher than that of VJS and includes no cost 
estimation of renovation of main building.  Additionally, Scherrer’s construction manager has 
convinced a buyer of New Life of Elkhorn’s development, a veteran’s organization Great Lakes 
of Dryhootch from Milwaukee, that the current use of the main building would not justify any 
expenditure to renovate the building.  Scherrer’s construction manager stated that it would be 
more feasible to demolish the main building and construct new offices. Scherrer’s construction 



manager’s opinion was not made known to Zoe Makhsous at her meeting with Scherrer’s 
principals last year.  She would not have entered a construction contract with Scherrer knowing 
Scherrer’s position and wasted valuable construction time. 
  
 As New Life of Elkhorn has no budget to demolish the main building, Zoe Makhsous 
plans to purchase the main building to convert it into her personal residence as she is selling 
her condo in Chicago due to exorbitant property taxes.  See attached.  Zoe Makhsous will 
finance the conversion with her personal bank loan. 
 

The veteran’s organization, Great Lakes of Dryhootch from Milwaukee, is interested to 
purchase the Adult Family Home duplexes on land contract after New Life of Elkhorn completes 
the construction.  Great Lakes of Dryhootch from Milwaukee has purchased Adult Family 
Homes by New Life of Crivitz, a similar project to New Life of Elkhorn.  The executive director of 
Great Lakes of Dryhootch, Otis Winstead, has already discussed the interests to purchase New 
Life of Elkhorn’s Adult Family Home duplexes with Bonnie.   

 
New Life of Elkhorn would like to request CUP extension for another year so New Life of 

Elkhorn can apply construction permit to construct the Adult Family Home duplexes while Zoe 
Makhsous works on renovating the main building to be her personal residence.  The projected 
time line for the next 12 months are as follows, 

 
1. New Life of Elkhorn will complete framing of four Adult Family Home duplexes; 
2. New Life of Elkhorn will complete and obtain occupancy permit for at least one 

duplex for Great Lakes of Dryhootch to operate it as Adult Family Home; 
3. Zoe Makhsous will obtain an occupancy permit for her personal residence and move 

to live in the existing building. 
   

New Life of Elkhorn has engaged Grant Gunyon of Veteran Property Maintenance to be 
the local contact for renovating of Zoe’s residence and coordinating with builders to construct 
the Adult Family Home duplexes.  Zoe will be onsite weekly to oversee development progress. 

 
Thank you for your consideration.  Please contact Zoe Makhsous if you need additional 

information. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Zoe Makhsous 
General Manager 
New Life of Elkhorn, LP 
 

 
  



M
as

te
r B

ed
ro

om

In
do

or
 P

oo
l 

Fa
m

ily
K

itc
he

n
/ d

in
in

g

Fa
m

ily
2b

/2
b 

Su
it 

G
ar
ag
e

Pa
nt
y

B
ed

/b
at

h 
1 

B
ed

/b
at

h 
2

B
ed

/b
at

h 
3

be
d/

ba
th

 4

B
ed

/b
at

h 
7

B
ed

/b
at

h 
5

B
ed

/b
at

h 
6

be
d/

ba
th

 8

M
ed

ia
 

R
oo

m

la
un
dr
y

G
ue

st
 

D
in

in
g

D
EN

B
at
hr
oo
m

O
ut

do
or

 G
ar

de
n

C
lo
se
t



































From: Joe Ehlen  
Sent: Monday, June 10, 2019 2:58 PM 
To: 'Winstead, Otis' <otis@dryhootch.org> 
Subject: RE: ELKHORN PROJECT 

  

Otis; 

Work completed under invoice #4481; 

•        Project review with City and AE 

•        Replace temporary enclosures on the north elevation 

•        Install plywood enclosures for existing windows and doors 

•        Prep to infill pool 

•        Clean entire building of debris and trash 

•        Refuse disposal 

  

Budget for Phase #1 Adult Family Duplexes. 

•        Excavation for buildings 

•        Excavation for parking lots and drives 

•        Storm and sanitary piping 

•        Concrete sidewalks and asphalt 

•        Landscaping 

•        Railing/fence 

•        Complete Duplex buildings as drawn 

  

Budget $2,002,973.00 

  

mailto:otis@dryhootch.org


Pool Infill; 

•        Plug/cap all inlets, outlets and drains 

•        Fill pool with #6 clear stone, leave approx. 5” below existing concrete for future concrete slab 

  

Budget $30,500.00 

  

North elevation EFIS 

•        Remove old pipes, ducts, bar joists, etc… 

•        Infill openings per plan 

•        Provide and install (2) windows in new openings 

•        Remove temp enclosures and sheath with dens glass 

•        Install EFIS on drainage mat 

•        Flashing at EFIS to brick 

•        Roof edge at EFIS to roof 

  

Budget $105,928.00 

 



PLAN COMMISSION – FINDING OF FACT 
 
DATE:   August 1, 2019 
PROJECT:  Brogan Rezone 
PC ID:   E19.06.012 
ACTION:  Rezone Approval 
 
 
The City of Elkhorn Plan Commission officially convened on August 1, 2019 to consider 
the Rezone Application, submitted by the City of Elkhorn, for M-1 to RS-1. 

 
After considering the site plan, the staff report, oral and written testimony, the Elkhorn 
2040 Comprehensive Development Plan, the Zoning on the subject property, and other 
materials presented at the meeting, the Plan Commission does hereby make the 
following “finding of fact”: 
 
FINDING OF FACT 
 

1. The rezone is consistent with the intent and purpose of the City of Elkhorn 
Zoning Code and the goals, objectives and policies of the Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan. 

 
Based upon the “Findings of Fact”, the Plan Commission motioned, seconded and voted 
to recommend APPROVAL of the Rezone Application for M-1 to RS-1 to the Common 
Council. 



       CITY OF ELKHORN 
ORDINANCE NO: _______ 

          AN ORDINANCE TO REZONE PART OF A PROPERTY LOCATED 
                         WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF ELKHORN: 

429 & 431 E. GENEVA ST 
 
WHEREAS, City of Elkhorn proposes to rezone Tax Key Parcel: YVSE00009A, within the City 
of Elkhorn, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission did convene a public hearing on the matter of proposed re-
zone, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the proposed rezone. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Council of the City of Elkhorn as follows: 

 
1. The zoning classification shall be changed from M-1 Light Manufacturing District 

to RS-1 Single-Family Residence District for Tax Key Parcel: YVSE00009A de-
scribed as: 

 
PT NW 1/4 SEC 6 T2N R17E DESC AS: COM NW COR SEC 6, E 1444.98' TO 
PT IN C/L E GENEVA ST & S 33' TO POB, S89D45'E 212.55', S0D15'W 354', 
N89D45'W 223.60', N0D15'E 354.95', S84D30'E 11.10' TO POB. 1.82 A CITY 
OF ELKHORN 
 

2. The Zoning Map of the City of Elkhorn shall be amended in accordance with the 
above classification of properties. 

 
3. This ordinance shall be in force from and after its introduction and publication as 

provided by statutes. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _______ day of _______________________________2019. 
       

_____________________ 
Howie Reynolds, Mayor 

ATTEST:  
 
 
Cairie Virrueta, City Clerk 

1stReading: _____________ 
2nd Reading: ____________ 
Adopted: _______________  

        Published: ______________      



 
 

 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS FACILITY 
 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 4 
 

Date:   August 5, 2019 
 

Prepared by:  Matthew Lindstrom (DPW Operations Manager) 
 

To:   Members of the Common Council 
 

Summary: 
I am writing to provide information regarding Change Order No. 4 for the new DPW Facility off 
E. Centralia Street.  Items incorporated into subject Change Order (CO) are as follows: 
 

• Additional power required for CO/NO2 devices = $1,492 

• Electrical panel modifications with additional components for backup generator per 
manufacturer’s and inspector’s study / recommendations = $4,431 

• Additional doorway for bulk storage room = $1,371 

• Add sidewalk for staff entrance and grading work for interior of building = $4,792 

• Install quazite pullbox for utility service supply and connects = $3,201 

• Lighting control modifications for bulk storage room = $810 

• Exterior lighting control modifications, photo cells added = $959 

• Add interior light fixture for Parks area with receptacle – for work bench = $1,199 

• Add ADA sink for breakroom kitchen = $1,183 

• Add three electric hand dryers for restrooms = $1,018 
Subtotal = $20,456 
 

• Deducts for utility bills (paid by City, to be reimbursed by Contractor) = -$14,801.59 
Subtotal = -$14,801.59 

 
Total cost of CO No. 4 = $5,654.41 

 

Kueny has reviewed the accuracy of each item submitted and incorporated into subject CO and 
recommends approval.  Scherrer’s current contract and base bid amount, previously approved by 
Council, incorporates an allowance for varying conditions and potential change orders such as 
these.  The embedded contractual allowance of $45,000 minus subject CO and previously 
approved CO’s No. 2 & 3 equates to $33,560.41 yielding an allowance balance of $11,439.59. 
 
 
 
 



Scherrer’s Construction Cost Summary in Review: 
Base Construction Bid w/ seven Alternates   $5,060,951 
Contract Change Order No. 1     $125,420 
Contract Change Order No. 2 balance from allowance ($28,675) 
Contract Change Order No. 3 balance from allowance ($17,094) 
Contract Change Order No. 4 (beyond 45k allowance) $3,362 
 
       Total = $5,189,733 
 
Recommendation to Council: 
Authorize execution of subject Change Order No. 4 in the amount of $5,654.41. 



 
 

 

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:   August 5, 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Matheson Memorial Library Fencing 
 
Prepared by:  Matthew Lindstrom (DPW Operations Manager) 
 
To:   Members of the Common Council 
 
Summary: 
The landlord / property owner of a rental home adjacent to the Matheson Memorial Library 
voiced concerns to City Hall regarding the parking lot reconstruction that was completed last 
year.  To accommodate adequate drainage, the revised grading plan for the library parking lot 
was pitched / tipped in such a fashion that headlights from parking vehicles now shine into the 
windows of the home at said parcel, located off Wisconsin Street, just north of the library 
parking lot.  The orientation of the stalls was also rotated which directs headlights more directly 
towards subject home.  A landscaped buffer with bushes was considered however, the separation 
between the edge of parking lot and propery line did not create enough space to accommodate 
this.  In coordination with the property owner, a 4’ tall chainlink fencing system is being 
proposed.  The fencing system would consist of black fencing with privacy slats to accommodate 
blocking headlights.  Color to be coordinated with library and property owner. 
 
Cost: 
One quote was received from Roth & Sons Fence, Inc. of Elkhorn, which totaled $4,226 for         
102 lineal feet of fencing as described above and illustrated on attached exhibit. 
 
Recommendation to Council: 
Authorize budget adjustment to perform work as described at a cost not to exceed $4,500. 



Matheson Memorial Library Fencing

Data on this map may or may not be accurate, current, 
or otherwise reliable. For reference only.

Feet

0

Scale:
1"=60'

Legend

30.00

08/02/2019

60.0

Notes

© Kapur and Associates, Inc.

Municipal Boundary

W
is

co
ns

in
 S

t.

________________Proposed Fence


	00 CouncilAgenda190805
	05 CouncilMinutes190715
	05 COWMinutes190722
	05 COWMinutes190729
	06 Breastfeeding week 2019
	06b 2019.07.30 SCC Elkhorn Proposal_rvsd
	Proposal for Environmental Conditions Evaluation for the Potential New City Hall in Sunset Park of Former Gas Station Property
	Scope of Work
	Task 1 – Project Management and Data Acquisition
	Task 2 – Data Evaluation and Interpretation
	Task 3 – Documentation Report

	Qualifications
	Cost Estimate
	Schedule
	Agreement


	08b aNew Life of Elkhorn's CUP Extension Request July 2019
	08b Elkhorn Home Renovation Plan
	08b New Life of Elkhorn - VJS Contract 9.26.18 (1)
	08b New Life of Elkhorn - VJS Contract 9.26.18 Duplexes
	08b Scherr Construction
	08c Brogan Rezone FOF
	08c Brogan Rezone
	09a DPWFacilityCO4.190805
	09b MML.Fence190805
	09b MMLFencingExhibit



